MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING of the City of St. Augustine Beach,
Florida, held on Monday, March 2, 2009 in the Commission Chambers of City Hall, 2200 A1A
South, St. Augustine Beach, Florida.

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Charles at 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

Present: Commissioner Rich O'Brien, Vice Mayor Brud Helhoski, Mayor Frank Charles, Commissioner Edward
George, Commissioner Andrea Samuels.

Also Present: City Manager Max Royle, Police Chief Richard Hedges, City Attorney Geoff Dobson, Public
Works Director Marc Chattin, Building Official Gary Larson, Finance Director Melissa Burns, and
Deputy City Clerk Sharon Widdifield.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL CITY COMMISSION MEETING OF
JANUARY 26, 2009 AND REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 2, 2009

Mayor Charles noted that at the last meeting he had stated that the Finance Director is the Chief Financial Officer.
He asked that the record show that the City Manager is the CFO.

Motion: to approve both minutes as amended, Moved by Vice Mayor Brud Helhoski, None seconded.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote (summary: Yes = 5).

Yes: Commissioner Rich O'Brien, Vice Mayor Brud Helhoski, Mayor Frank Charles, Commissioner Edward
George, Commissioner Andrea Samuels.

ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA

Mr. Royle commented that Items 3 and 8 had been postponed to the next meeting and item 9 has been deleted.

CHANGE TO ORDER OF TOPICS ON THE AGENDA

Commissioner George asked to move item 11 forward, as there was someone present to speak on it. It was agreed
to replace item 3 with item 11.

PRESENTATIONS

A. Proclamation to Declare April 19-25, 2009 as Juvenile Justice Week
Mr. Dobson read the proclamation
The proclamation was approved by unanimous voice vote.

Mayor Charles asked to move item Resolution 09-01 to the Consent Agenda. There was no objection.

1
City of St. Augustine Beach
Commission Meeting Minutes
March 2, 2009



B. Audit Services
1. Presentation of Audit Report for Fiscal Year 2008

2. Request to Approve Renewal of Three-Year Letter of Engagement for
Audit Services with Davis Monk and Associates

Mr. Jeff Zeichner of Davis Monk reported that the City’s financial statements had received the highest possible
determination. No material weakness in controls were noted, he said, and a review of compliance with laws,
regulations, etc. showed no matters to report.

Commissioner Samuels commented on the City’s $4 million debt and asked if the City should have a funding
policy and debt management policy.

Mr. Zeichner said the audit reports only on the financial statements’ accuracy. Management, he said, is outside
their scope of work.

Commissioner George asked why practices and adherence to policies had not been assessed, and Mr. Zeitner said
that is not what an audit does. It would be possible to engage a CPA to do an evaluation of current controls, he
said.

Commissioner George asked that the bid process and controls be examined and compared to other cities. Mayor
Charles said the City may want a separate group to handle this, so there would be double oversight.

Mr. Zeichner said there are guidelines in Florida Statutes for auditor selection, and he believed cities are required
to evaluate the auditor’s services at renewal but are not required to go out for bid each time. Commissioner
George said that while Davis Monk is doing a good job, the City needs to look at all contracts to see if prices are
competitive.

Mayor Charles had no objection to bidding on the additional services. Commissioner O’Brien and Vice Mayor
Helhoski agreed that getting bids for auditing services was a good idea.

Motion: to postpone Item B-2 and get bids. Moved by Mayor Frank Charles, Seconded by Commissioner
George.

Mr. Royle asked what the RFP process was to include and was told it would include the usual audit service plus a
review of the bidding process and adherence to procedures. Mr. Zeitner said these are two separate standards and
should not be bid together.

It was agreed that the only the audit services would be bid now, and the additional services would be an agenda
item for the next meeting,

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote (summary: Yes = 5).
Yes: Commissioner Rich O'Brien, Vice Mayor Brud Helhoski, Mayor Frank Charles, Commissioner Edward
George, Commissioner Andrea Samuels.

C. Special Events Permit:

1. For Keepers of the Coast Beach Soccer Tournament on Beach between 11™ and 7" Streets on
Saturday, April 4, 2009, 8 a.m. to 8 p.m.

City of St. Augustine Beach
Commission Meeting Minutes
March 2, 2009



Mr. Billy Zeits of Keepers of the Coast said events are being planned for every weekend in April. The mission of
the group, he said, is to further awareness of beach habitat, sea turtle protection, and coastal environment, etc.

The permit was approved by unanimous voice vote.

2. For 3™ Annual Sea Turtle Festival, County Pier Pavilion, Saturday, April 18,2009, 10 a.m. to 3
p.m.

Ms. Tara Dodson explained the activities planned.
The permit was approved by unanimous voice vote.
A draft of a proclamation for sea turtle awareness was presented to the Commission for review

3. For Submarine Veterans’ Fun Night. County Pier Pavilion, Thursday, April 30, 2009,
3-11 p.m.

Mr. Al Kenyon explained that this will be a private event for the submarine veterans.
The permit was approved by unanimous voice vote.

4. For Music by the Sea Concerts, County Pier Pavilion, Wednesday evenings, May 13-
September 30, 2009, 5-9 p.m.

Mr. Robert Samuels of the Civic Association said this season would be similar to those in the past.
The permit was approved by unanimous voice vote.
5. For the Taste of the Beach, County Pier Pavilion, Sunday, May 17, 2009, 1-6 p.m.

Mr. Samuels said this will be the 4™ annual event and will benefit Betty Griffin House.
The permit was approved by unanimous voice vote.

6. For the Classic Cruisers and Concert, A1A Beach Boulevard and County Pier Pavilion,
Sunday, June 14, 2009, 1-7-p.m.

Mr. Samuels said this is a new event and is part of the City’s 50" birthday celebration.

There was discussion of the need for police officers to direct the parade involved and other traffic concerns. It
was agreed that the City would cover the expense.

The permit was approved by unanimous voice vote.

7. For the St. Augustine Beach Jazz Fest, County Pier Pavilion, Saturday, September 26,
2009, 3-9 p.m. and Sunday, September 27, 2-6 p.m.

Mr. Samuels said this event is another part of birthday celebration and is a joint event with the Jazz Society.

The permit was approved by unanimous voice vote.

City of St. Augustine Beach
Commission Meeting Minutes
March 2, 2009



D. Anniversary of City’s 50™ Birthday: Update Report by Ms. Melissa Stuart, /Events
Coordinator, of the “Twist and Shout Party” at the Holiday Inn, Saturday, March 28, 2009

Ms. Stuart said the banners have been received and all but two have been sold. The Twist and Shout event, she
said, is on March 28" at the Holiday Inn, with tickets for sale at city hall and Holiday Inn for $25 per person.
Other events are a surf contest in September, a history gallery in October, a celebration after the November
Commission meeting, a sand sculpting contest with sculpting classes beginning in June, and the November 7"
birthday party at the pier.

E. Sewer System Improvements Project: Update Report by Mr. Mickhael Sulayman, County
Utility Department

Mr. Sulayman offered a video presentation explaining the history of the project and the priority areas involved.
The project is being funded by the DEP through a grant and loan program, he said, and he added that Federal
economic stimulus funds may help. Public meetings will be held with the neighborhoods involved, Mr. Sulayman
said. He hoped to award a bid to a contractor in September with groundbreaking in January 2010.

Vice Mayor Helhoski said connection fees have been a concern, and he hoped economic stimulus funds will help
with these.

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

Mayor Charles said he had several phone calls about the Maratea property and would discuss them later in the
meeting.

Vice Mayor Helhoski said the Intergovernmental Committee will meet Wednesday, so he will report on it next
month.

Commissioner O’Brien said there was no TDC meeting this month. He reported that several visitors from China
had been in town on a trade mission. He thanked Commissioner George on behalf of a resident for his help with
noise complaints at the Oasis Restaurant.

Commissioner George said that he, along with several others, had attended the Conference for Local
Government. He asked when a special meeting on budget would be held, and Mr. Royle suggested combining
this with a review of the City Attorney candidates. The Commission agreed to hold the special meeting on March
16™ for the two topics. Commissioner George also asked for information on two tree removals.

Commissioner Samuels said the Civic Association will meet next Tuesday.

City Attorney Dobson: No report.

Gary Larson: No report.

Marc Chattin: No report.

Chief Hedges said he had asked the City Attorney to research an ordinance to make traffic violations an

ordinance violation in order to keep fines in the City instead of going to the state. He noted that the hurricane
exercise is scheduled for April 29th

PUBLIC HEARINGS

City of St. Augustine Beach
Commission Meeting Minutes
March 2, 2009



None

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Jerry Turnage, 21 Versaggi, commented that a Sheriff’s deputy had said he was told to write tickets to anyone
crossing the dunes. He noted that the path through dunes in his neighborhood had been used for beach access for
years. and questioned why no walkways had been built.

Vice Mayor Helhoski said this had arisen from a complaint about a person camping between the dunes, and said
the Sheriff’s office had been asked to keep people out of the dunes Persons can use the walkways at street ends
he said, and he asked the City Manager to contact the Sheriff and clarify this.

Steve Mitherz, 17 Sea Oaks Drive, asked about the retention ponds in Sea Oaks. Mr. Dobson said he is preparing
an easement for the ditch to review at the next meeting. Mr. Mitherz asked about the Steinheimer case and was
told that the City is now waiting for the Circuit Court judge to set a date for oral argument. Garbage on the beach
is not being picked up, according to Mr. Mitherz, and the City Manager was asked to look into the matter and
report on it.

CONSENT

1. Tree Board/Beautification Advisory Committee: Appointment of Ms. Ann Palmquist as Regular
Member to Take Place of Ms. Dee Lovell

2. Proclamation to Declare April 2009 as Child Abuse Prevention Month
3. Resolution _09-01 to Support Efforts to Protect Funding for Florida’s K-12 Grade Educational
System

Motion: to approve Consent items 1, 2 and 3. Moved by Mayor Frank Charles, Seconded by ~ Commissioner
Rich O'Brien.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote (summary: Yes = 5).

Yes: Commissioner Rich O'Brien, Vice Mayor Brud Helhoski, Mayor Frank Charles, Commissioner Edward
George, Commissioner Andrea Samuels.

OLD BUSINESS

3. Veterans’ Memorial at Lakeside Park: Review with Mr. John Reardon of Proposed Design

[This item was postponed.]

11. Donation of Artworks to the City: Consideration of Policies

[This item was moved forward.]

Commissioner George distributed a recent article showing that the Supreme Court has ruled that cities can
regulate art displayed in public places.

Philip McDaniel of St. Johns Cultural Council presented ideas for public art policies and offered the Council’s
services to help with this.

City of St. Augustine Beach
Commission Meeting Minutes
March 2, 2009



Commissioner George asked the Commission to decide if it is interested in public art, whether permanent
donations or rotating loans.

Mayor Charles had no objection, and Vice Mayor Helhoski suggested expanding the Beautification Advisory
Committee for this purpose.

Mayor Charles asked that the Committee be asked at its meeting whether they are interested.

4. New Water Conservation Regulations: Review of Planning Board’s Recommendation
Whether to Adopt

Patricia Gill of the Planning and Zoning Board said the Board had recommended the City prepare an ordinance
including some things already in land development code. She said there is not enough flexibility in the ordinance
presented by the Water Management District.

Mayor Charles said the Water Management District had wanted the City’s ordinance to be identical to their
regulations in order to allow for enforcement.

Vice Mayor Helhoski said the ordinance needs to have some teeth in it.
Ms. Gill objected to enforcement by the Police Department and felt the Code Enforcement Officer could handle

this. She wanted Water Management to come up with a reasonable plan to protect water resources and noted that
some money might be available from them for enforcement of their regulations.

Motion: take no action and review options. Moved by Mayor Frank Charles, Seconded by Commissioner
Edward George.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote (summary: Yes = 5).

Yes: Commissioner Rich O'Brien, Vice Mayor Brud Helhoski, Mayor Frank Charles, Commissioner Edward

George, Commissioner Andrea Samuels.

5. Filming/Photography Production in City: Consideration of an Ordinance to Require a
Permit

Vice Mayor Helhoski said that a permit would let the City know what was happening and where.

Commissioner Samuels asked if the permit would include payment of overtime for police personnel if required.
Vice Mayor Helhoski said this could be added to the ordinance.

Mr. Dobson said he will prepare an ordinance.

6. Ordinances Concerning the Maratea Subdivision:

A. Ordinance 09-01, First Reading, to Amend the Planned Unit Development Narrative
for Phase I1

Mr. Royle explained that these ordinances relate to the possible purchase of the property, and Mr. Dobson urged
passing them on first reading so that they could be adopted before the grant deadline.

Mr. Dobson read Ordinance 09-01 by title only.

City of St. Augustine Beach
Commission Meeting Minutes
March 2, 2009



Motion: to approve Ordinance 09-01 on first reading,. Moved by Mayor Frank Charles, Seconded by
Commissioner Rich O'Brien.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote (summary: Yes = 5).

Yes: Commissioner Andrea Samuels, Commissioner Edward George, Commissioner Rich O'Brien, Mayor
Frank Charles, Vice Mayor Brud Helhoski.

Mr. Dobson noted that a meeting on the proposed purchase was scheduled for tomorrow, and Commissioner
George suggested that Commissioner O’Brien attend.

B. Ordinance 09-02, First Reading, to Allow Signs for Subdivisions on Public Streets
with City Commission Approval

Mr. Dobson read Ordinance 09-02 by title only.

Motion: to approve Ordinance 09-02 on first reading, Moved by Mayor Frank Charles, Seconded by  Vice
Mayor Brud Helhoski.

Vote: Motion passed (summary: Yes = 4, No = 1, Abstain = 0).

Yes: Commissioner Edward George, Commissioner Rich O'Brien, Mayor Frank Charles, Vice Mayor Brud
Helhoski.

No: Commissioner Andrea Samuels.

Commissioner Samuels explained that she opposed setting a precedent by allowing signage in the right of way.
Mr. Dobson explained that the ordinance would allow only a subdivision sign and only in very restricted
circumstances.

Mr. Chattin commented that the Maratea owners do not want the City to use their property to construct the
walkway. The contractor, he said, can build the walkway “from the top down” with an increase of $67,000. Mr.
Chattin said the cost increase could be covered by omitting the Trex decking.

Mr. Jerry Turnage, 21 Versaggi Drive, asked why the Commission had gone back on the original price and was
told by Mr. Dobson that there had been only negotiations and that no agreement had been reached regarding
purchase of the property or its price. While residents had authorized the Commission to acquire the property, he
said, no millage will go into effect unless and until the purchase is completed.

Mr. Chattin was concerned that work must stop until the contractor is advised how the Commission wants to
proceed. He felt there is a need to hurry in order to complete the area near the beach before turtle season but
believed a small section from the beach inward to 250 feet could be started and the rest built top down.

Commissioner George said this can’t be decided now because of the meeting to be held tomorrow. It can be
discussed at March 16™ meeting, he said.

Mr. Royle suggested granting approval if no agreement is reached tomorrow.

Mr. Wil Smith of St. Johns County Parks and Recreation said that the City can post the beach before turtle season
and then commence construction.

Motion: to expend the funds necessary to proceed with the project in the event no agreement is reached on the
land and to maintain the Trex board. Moved by Mayor Frank Charles, Seconded by Commissioner
Edward George.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote (summary: Yes = 5).

Yes: Commissioner Rich O'Brien, Vice Mayor Brud Helhoski, Mayor Frank Charles, Commissioner Edward

7
City of St. Augustine Beach
Commission Meeting Minutes
March 2, 2009



George, Commissioner Andrea Samuels.

Bob Russo, 17 Bermuda Run Way, asked about the negotiated purchase price and if the City had considered the
purchase of Phase II.

Mr. Dobson said that is a hope, but there are no agreements or understandings regarding acquisition of Phase II.
The purchase price, he added, was changed by the seller last month through changes to discounts, taxes, and other
items.

Commissioner George asked if the half mill would pay for the bond issue, and Ms. Burns said it would.

Mr. Dobson noted that the difference between the current appraised value and purchase price would not be
reimbursed by any grant the City might get, so that over $1 million would come out of City’s coffers.

Wil Smith said that the City was to be reimbursed for 70% of the assessed value, and he hoped to roll that into a
second application for a grant for the remainder of the property. If the FCT appraisal changes, he said, they will
negotiate a price with the seller and the City will be reimbursed 70% of the acquisition cost.

7. City Attorney Services: Scheduling Special Meetings in March to Review and Rank
Proposals

[This item was addressed during Commissioner Comments. ]

NEW BUSINESS

8. Ocean Trace Subdivision: Request by Homeowners’ Association for City to Assume
Ownership of Ocean Trace Road between A1A South and Entrance to the Subdivision

[This item was postponed.]

9. Annexation and Land Use/Zoning Change: Consideration of Requesting City Attorney to
Prepare Ordinances for .54 Acres (Lots 1 and 2, Block 9, Sunset Park Subdivision, 3603
SR-A1A, Mr. Robert P. Harry, Sr., Applicant)

[This item was deleted.]

10.  Request by Commissioner Samuels to Discuss Policies re:

A. Citizens Serving on Two City Boards
Commissioner Samuels was concerned with a conflict of interest between boards.

Mr. Dobson said that if a board has the ability to make a decision, such as the Planning Board, it is considered an
office. If it is purely an advisory board, he said, then a person can sit on it even if they have another position in
the city. He added that a person can sit on one advisory board and one office according to the Attorney General.

Mayor Charles said he might object to a person holding two positions if there were other candidates available, but
often there are no other applicants.

City of St. Augustine Beach
Commission Meeting Minutes
March 2, 2009



There was discussion of the need for rules regarding this. Commissioner George suggested that if issues before
two committees or boards overlapped, the City Attorney could recommend the individual recuse himself. Mayor
Charles said he was content with the Attorney General’s opinion.

No action was taken.
B. Citizens Attending Closed Meetings

Commissioner Samuels felt that citizens attending closed meetings could be breaking the Sunshine Laws.

Mr. Dobson said the Government in the Sunshine Laws would not apply, but attendance at such a meeting can be
considered ex parte communication. He said that while members of the Planning and Zoning Board can attend
Commission meetings, for instance, if a matter comes up that may come before the Planning Board, the member
can recuse himself from voting.

Commissioner Samuels said she was told Commissioners could not attend the meeting in question. Mr. Dobson
replied that if two or more Commission members attend a meeting, minutes must be taken and the meeting must
be advertised. If a board member wants to attend, he said, they are advised that it may be ex parte communication
and they may not be able to vote on the subject.

Mr. Dobson commented that citizens cannot be excluded from meetings the City participates in, but board
members attending cannot express opinions on matters that may come before a City board. At the Maratea
meeting, he said it was on record that the board member attending would not express any opinion. Members of
City boards, he said are discouraged from conducting outside investigations or attending meetings that my involve
issues that will come before them, as it could taint the process.

Mr. Dobson said there are very few matters where closed meetings are held involving the City, and all others are
open to the public, although the public cannot always participate.

Mayor Charles said the Commission can tell board members it would prefer they not attend City negotiations.
C. Moving Public Comments Up on the Agenda

Commissioner Samuels felt that people wanting to speak should not be kept waiting.

Commissioner O’Brien agreed.

Mayor Charles had no objection to moving Public Comments after Presentations.

Commissioner George said items may come up during Commissioner Comments that the public will want to
address.

It was agreed to move Public Comments before Public Hearings and after Commissioner Comments.

12.  Use of Sidewalks by Bicyclists: Request by Commissioner George to Discuss

Commissioner George noted that a bicycle is considered a vehicle when on a roadway and a pedestrian when on a
sidewalk. 15% or more of all bike accidents, he said, are due to riding on the wrong side of the road on a
sidewalk against traffic.

City of St. Augustine Beach
Commission Meeting Minutes
March 2, 2009



